
THIS MEETING WILL BE OPEN TO THE PUBLIC FOR IN-PERSON AND 
REMOTE PARTICIPATION PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 

54953(e). 

MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC MAY PARTICIPATE REMOTELY IN THE MEETING VIA 
THE FOLLOWING METHOD: 

As always, the public may view the Tracy Homelessness Advisory Committee meetings live on 
the City of Tracy’s website at CityofTracy.org or on Comcast Channel 26/AT&T U-verse 
Channel 99. To view from the City’s website, open the “Government” menu at the top of the 
City’s homepage and select “Tracy Homelessness Advisory Committee”, then select “View 
Homelessness Advisory Committee Meetings on YouTube” under the “Boards and 
Commissions” section. 

If you only wish to watch the meeting and do not wish to address the Council, the City 
requests that you stream the meeting through the City’s website or watch on Channel 26. 

Remote Public Comment: 

During the upcoming Homelessness Advisory Committee meeting public comment will 
be accepted via the options listed below.  If you would like to comment remotely, 
please follow the protocols below: 

• Comments via:
o Online by visiting https://cityoftracyevents.webex.com and using the

following Event Number: 2555 589 9696 and Event Password: THAC
o If you would like to participate in the public comment

anonymously, you may submit your comment in WebEx by typing
“Anonymous” when prompted to provide a First and Last Name and
inserting Anonymous@example.com when prompted to provide an
email address.

o Join by phone by dialing +1-408-418-9388, enter 25555899696#8422#  Press *3
to raise the hand icon to speak on an item.

• Protocols for commenting via WebEx:
o If you wish to comment on the “Consent Calendar”, “Items from the

Audience/Public Comment” or “Regular Agenda” portions of the agenda:
 Listen for the Chairperson to open that portion of the agenda for

discussion, then raise your hand to speak by clicking on the Hand icon on
the Participants panel to the right of your screen.

 If you no longer wish to comment, you may lower your hand by clicking on
the Hand icon again.

TRACY HOMELESSNESS ADVISORY COMMITTEE REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

Thursday, October 19, 2023, 7:00 P.M. 

Tracy City Hall, 333 Civic Center Plaza, Tracy Web Site: www.cityoftracy.org 



Tracy Homelessness Advisory Committee  October 19, 2023 
Page 2 
 

o Comments for the “Consent Calendar” “Items from the Agenda/Public Comment” 
or “Regular Agenda” portions of the agenda will be accepted until the public 
comment for that item is closed.  

 
Government Code Section 54954.3 states that every public meeting shall provide an opportunity for the 
public to address the Tracy Homelessness Advisory Committee on any item, before or during 
consideration of the item, however no action shall be taken on any item not on the agenda. 

 
Full copies of the agenda are available on the City’s website: www.cityoftracy.org 

CALL TO ORDER 
ROLL CALL 
 
1. CONSENT CALENDAR 

 
1.A. Adoption of June 15, 2023, and August 17, 2023, Regular Meeting Minutes 

 
2. ITEMS FROM THE AUDIENCE - In accordance with Council Meeting Protocols and 

Rules of Procedure, adopted by Resolution 2019-240, a five-minute maximum time limit 
per speaker will apply to all individuals speaking during “Items from the Audience/Public 
Comment”. For non-agendized items, Advisory Committee members may briefly respond 
to statements made or questions posed by individuals during public comment; ask 
questions for clarification; direct the individual to the appropriate staff member; or request 
that the matter be placed on a future agenda or that staff provide additional information to 
the Tracy Homelessness Advisory Committee.  
 

3. REGULAR AGENDA 
 

3.A The Tracy Homelessness Advisory Committee receive an informational update 
regarding homeless services and the Temporary Emergency Housing Facility 
project. 

 
3.B The Tracy Homelessness Advisory Committee recommend that City Council 

adopt a Resolution: 1) Authorizing the acceptance of a grant award from Health 
Plan of San Joaquin in the amount of $595,000 to partially fund the continued 
operation of the Tracy Interim Shelter Site; and 2) Appropriating the total grant 
funds to the Mobility and Housing Department, Homeless Services Division 
budget. 

 
3.C The Tracy Homelessness Advisory Committee recommend that the City 

Council adopt a Resolution (1) approving Amendment No. 1 to the General 
Services Agreement (Agreement) with United Fence Services, Inc., to extend 
the term of the Agreement through December 31, 2024 for the rental of fence 
panels, stands and safety brackets required at the Temporary Emergency 
Housing Facility (TEHF).  

 
 
 
 
 



Tracy Homelessness Advisory Committee  October 19, 2023 
Page 3 
 
4. STAFF ITEMS 
 
5. COMMITTEE ITEMS 
 
6. ADJOURNMENT 
 
Posting Date:  October 16, 2023 
The City of Tracy is in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act and will make all 
reasonable accommodations for the disabled to participate in employment, programs and 
facilities. Persons requiring assistance or auxiliary aids in order to participate, should contact 
the City Manager’s Office at (209) 831-6000 at least 24 hours prior to the meeting. 



 

TRACY HOMELESSNESS ADVISORY COMMITTEE  REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
 

 
June 15, 2023, 7:00 p.m. 

 
Tracy City Hall, 333 Civic Center Plaza, Tracy, CA 95376 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

CALL TO ORDER – Chairperson Davis called the meeting to order at 7:00 pm 
 
ROLL CALL – Deputy City Clerk. Roll call found Chairperson Davis and Vice Chairperson 

Bedolla 
 
 
1. ITEMS FROM THE AUDIENCE – Bob Shwartz, resident of San Jose, spoke about the 

homeless issues in San Jose and how this will affect Tracy in the future. Mr. Shwarts 
also shared his experience of outreach services with Tracy Community Connections 
Center (TCCC) team and what TCCC is doing for the City of Tracy. 
 
Cynthia Paris, shared positive highlights that TCCC has done in the City of Tracy.  
 
Bubba Paris, spoke about all the things that his organization, TCCC have done for the 
City of Tracy without City funds until the pre-shelter services for the shelter. Mr. Paris 
also expressed his frustration with the things being said about him and asked for an 
apology from the City.   
 
Committee comments followed. 
 
Alice English, spoke about the importance of the upcoming council meeting and asked 
the community to come and listen to the issues being discussed especially the aquatic 
center.  
 
Mary Dokes, shared a diversion story of a family that TCCC was able to help with past 
due rent and that the community should come together instead of pointing fingers.  

 
 
2. REGULAR AGENDA 
 

3.A The Tracy Homelessness Advisory Committee receive an informational report 
regarding the implementation of the City Council Strategic Plan to End and 
Prevent Homelessness and the most recent Emergency Interim Shelter activities. 
  
Virginia Carney, Homeless Services Manager provided the staff report, 
presentation and responded to questions. 
 
Bob Shwartz asked how many beds will be available once the phases are 
completed and the costs of each bed.  
Cynthia Camacho, had questions about the overlap in services, number of 
unhoused individuals in Tracy and about the custom containers. 



THAC Minutes  June 15, 2023 

 

 
Alice English, spoke about the overlap in services between the three agencies 
and questioned the accuracy of the numbers and if citations are being issued to 
those who refuse services.  
 
Bubba Paris, shared how his data is gathered at TCCC and is working on finding 
alternative housing options since there are not enough beds at the shelter.  
 
No committee questions or comments. 

 
ACTION: Motion was made by Vicechair Bedolla and seconded by Chairperson Davis 

receiving the informational report regarding the implementation of the City 
Council Strategic Plan to End and Prevent Homelessness and the most recent 
Emergency Interim Shelter activities. Roll call found all in favor; passed and so 
ordered. 

  
 

3.B The Tracy Homelessness Advisory Committee recommend that the City Council 
adopt a resolution ratifying, pursuant to Tracy Municipal Code Section 
2.20.180(B)(1), various procurement contracts for goods and general services 
agreements executed by the City Manager to implement Emergency Interim 
Housing solutions for the unsheltered.  

  
Karin Schnaider, Assistant City Manager provided the staff report and responded 
to questions. 
 
Cynthia Camacho, spoke about the partnership she has with TCCC and all the 
hard work TCCC has done for the community. 

 
No committee questions or comments. 
 

ACTION: Motion was made by Vice Chairperson Bedolla and seconded by Chairperson 
Davis that the Tracy Homelessness Advisory Committee recommend that the 
City Council adopt a resolution ratifying, pursuant to Tracy Municipal Code 
Section 2.20.180(B)(1), various procurement contracts for goods and general 
services agreements executed by the City Manager to implement Emergency 
Interim Housing solutions for the unsheltered. Roll call found all in favor; passed 
and so ordered. 

 
 

3.C The Tracy Homelessness Advisory Committee recommend that the City Council 
adopt a resolution approving a two-year general services agreement with 
Stockton Petroleum Company, Inc., in a not to exceed amount of $500,000, for 
on-demand mobile fueling of diesel fuel at 370 W. Arbor Avenue, Tracy, CA 
95304. 

  
Virginia Carney, Homeless Services Manager provided the staff report and 
responded to questions. 
 
Ilene Macintire, Senior Civil Engineer responded to questions.  
 



THAC Minutes  June 15, 2023 

 

Alice English asked why PG&E cannot hook up the electrical poles instead of 
using the generators.  
 
Bob Shwartz, thanked the committee and asked the committee members to 
schedule some time with him to provide outreach services to the unhoused.   
Committee questions and comments followed. 
 
Bubba Paris, spoke about the issues that occurred at the warming center and 
that he did not chose the location.  
 
Committee comments and questions followed.  
 

ACTION: Motion was made by Vice Chairperson Bedolla and seconded by Chairperson 
Davis that the Tracy Homelessness Advisory Committee recommend that the 
City Council adopt a resolution approving a two-year general services agreement 
with Stockton Petroleum Company, Inc., in a not to exceed amount of $500,000, 
for on-demand mobile fueling of diesel fuel at 370 W. Arbor Avenue, Tracy, CA 
95304. Roll call found all in favor; passed and so ordered. 

 
 

3.D The Tracy Homelessness Advisory Committee (THAC) discuss and provide 
direction regarding Phase 4 – Custom Containers at the Emergency Homeless 
Shelter.  

  
Karin Schnaider, Assistant City Manager provided the staff report and responded 
to questions. 
 
Adriana Castaneda, Director of Mobility and Housing responded to questions. 
 
Ilene Macintire, Senior Civil Engineer responded to questions. 
 
Virginia Carney, Homeless Services Manager responded to questions.  
 
James Jackson, Director of Operations and Utilities responded to questions. 
 
Midori Lichtwardt, Interim City Manager responded to questions.  
 
Bijal Patel, City Attorney responded to questions.  
 
Committee questions and comments followed. 
 
Mary Dokes, shared her frustration with the money and time spent on the current 
containers and lack of responsibility. 
 
Committee comments continued. 
 
Cynthia Camacho, expressed her concerns with the custom containers being 
non-congregate and how those individuals will be monitored.  
 
Alice English, shared her concerns of the capabilities that Virginia has in her role 
and that the answers to the questions asked are always pushed onto future 



THAC Minutes  June 15, 2023 

 

meetings. Ms. English does not know what option should be chosen, but money 
needs to stop being wasted.    
 
Bubba Paris, shared his opinion on the options provided to the committee for 
consideration.  
 
Committee questions and comments followed. 

 
Chairperson Davis asked for a 5-minute break.  
 
Committee questions and comments continued. 
 
Committee and staff discussion followed. 
 
Bijal Patel, City Attorney shared with the committee that no action is required on 
this informal item since the committee has provided direction to City staff and a 
staff report will be prepared to present on June 20th under Council items. 
 

 
3.E The Tracy Homelessness Advisory Committee recommend that the City Council 

adopt a resolution by a four-fifths vote (1) approving an amendment to the 
construction contract with GradeTech, Inc. for Capital Improvement Project (CIP) 
71112 Arbor Temporary Emergency Housing Project expanding the scope of 
work in the amount of $135,000 in anticipated work for a total not to exceed 
amount of $435,000 for the amendment, and (2) dispending the bidding 
requirements for the additional scope of work pursuant to California Public 
Contract Code Section 22050 and Tracy Municipal Code Section 2.20.270(a). 

  
Karin Schnaider, Assistant City Manager recommended to reject the item as the 
incorrect staff report was attached to the agenda. 
 
No public comment.  
 
No committee questions or comments. 
 

ACTION: Motion was made by Vice Chairperson Bedolla and seconded by Chairperson 
Davis to reject item 3.E. Roll call found all in favor; passed and so ordered.  

 
 

3.F The Tracy Homelessness Advisory Committee recommend that the City Council 
adopt a resolution ratifying, pursuant to Tracy Municipal Code Section 
2.20.180(B)(1), contracts for goods and general services agreements executed 
by the City Manager to implement Emergency Interim Housing solutions for the 
unsheltered with Bicsec Security Inc., Jr Wagner Fire Protection Inc. and 
Temporary Restrooms. 

  
Karin Schnaider, Assistant City Manager provided the staff report and responded 
to questions. 
 
No public comment.  
 



THAC Minutes  June 15, 2023 

 

 No committee questions or comments. 
 

ACTION: Motion was made by Vicechair Bedolla and seconded by Chairperson Davis to 
adopt a resolution ratifying, pursuant to Tracy Municipal Code Section 
2.20.180(B)(1), contracts for goods and general services agreements executed 
by the City Manager to implement Emergency Interim Housing solutions for the 
unsheltered with Bicsec Security Inc., Jr Wagner Fire Protection Inc. and 
Temporary Restrooms. Roll call found all in favor; passed and so ordered. 

 
 

3.G The Tracy Homelessness Advisory Committee recommend that the City Council 
adopt a resolution (1) awarding a construction contract to Arnaudo Construction, 
Inc., of Tracy, California in the amount of $1,359,560 for the 384 Arbor Avenue 
Sewer Lift Station & Holding Tank, CIP 71112, (2) approving a project Not-to-
Exceed budget of $1,699,450 and (3) authorizing the City Manager to approve 
change orders up to the contingency amount of $135,956 if needed. 

  
Ilene Macintire, Senior Civil Engineer provided the staff report and responded to 
questions. 
 
No public comment.  
 
No committee questions or comments. 
 

ACTION: Motion was made by Vice Chairperson Bedolla and seconded by Chairperson 
Davis to adopt a resolution (1) awarding a construction contract to Arnaudo 
Construction, Inc., of Tracy, California in the amount of $1,359,560 for the 384 
Arbor Avenue Sewer Lift Station & Holding Tank, CIP 71112, (2) approving a 
project Not-to-Exceed budget of $1,699,450 and (3) authorizing the City Manager 
to approve change orders up to the contingency amount of $135,956 if needed. 
Roll call found all in favor; passed and so ordered. 

 
 

3.H The Tracy Homelessness Advisory Committee recommend that the City Council 
adopt a resolution (1) awarding a construction contract to DV Electric Company, 
Inc., of San Jose, California (DV) in the amount of $208,660 for the 370 Arbor 
Avenue Main Power Supply, CIP 71112, (2) exercising, under Section 14 of the 
bid documents, City’s right to waive, as immaterial bid irregularities, delays by DV 
in strictly meeting posted deadlines for requisite federal paperwork to document 
its Small Business Enterprise qualification, (3) approving a project Not-to-Exceed 
budget of $260,825 and (4) authorizing the City Manager to approve change 
orders up to the contingency amount of $20,866 if needed, pursuant to Tracy 
Municipal Code Section 2.20.090(b).  
 
Ilene Macintire, Senior Civil Engineer provided the staff report and responded to 
questions. 
 
No public comment.  
 
No committee questions or comments. 

 



THAC Minutes  June 15, 2023 

 

ACTION: Motion was made by Vice Chairperson Bedolla and seconded by Chairperson 
Davis to adopt a resolution (1) awarding a construction contract to DV Electric 
Company, Inc., of San Jose, California (DV) in the amount of $208,660 for the 
370 Arbor Avenue Main Power Supply, CIP 71112, (2) exercising, under Section 
14 of the bid documents, City’s right to waive, as immaterial bid irregularities, 
delays by DV in strictly meeting posted deadlines for requisite federal paperwork 
to document its Small Business Enterprise qualification, (3) approving a project 
Not-to-Exceed budget of $260,825 and (4) authorizing the City Manager to 
approve change orders up to the contingency amount of $20,866 if needed, 
pursuant to Tracy Municipal Code Section 2.20.090(b). Roll call found all in favor; 
passed and so ordered. 

 
 

3.I The Tracy Homelessness Advisory Committee recommend that the City Council 
adopt a resolution (1) awarding a construction contract to DV Electric Company, 
Inc., of San Jose, California (DV), in the amount of $373,745 for the 384 Arbor 
Avenue Main Power Supply, CIP 71112, (2) exercising, under Section 14 of the 
bid documents, City’s right to waive, as immaterial bid irregularities, delays by DV 
in strictly meeting posted deadlines for requisite federal paperwork to document 
its Small Business Enterprise qualification, (3) approving a project Not-to-Exceed 
budget of $467,182,and (4) authorizing the City Manager to approve change 
orders up to the contingency amount of $37,375, if needed, pursuant to Tracy 
Municipal Code Section 2.20.090(b).  
 
Ilene Macintire, Senior Civil Engineer provided the staff report and responded to 
questions. 
 
No public comment.  
 
No committee questions or comments. 

 
ACTION: Motion was made by Vice Chairperson Bedolla and seconded by Chairperson 

Davis to adopt a resolution (1) awarding a construction contract to DV Electric 
Company, Inc., of San Jose, California (DV), in the amount of $373,745 for the 
384 Arbor Avenue Main Power Supply, CIP 71112, (2) exercising, under Section 
14 of the bid documents, City’s right to waive, as immaterial bid irregularities, 
delays by DV in strictly meeting posted deadlines for requisite federal paperwork 
to document its Small Business Enterprise qualification, (3) approving a project 
Not-to-Exceed budget of $467,182,and (4) authorizing the City Manager to 
approve change orders up to the contingency amount of $37,375, if needed, 
pursuant to Tracy Municipal Code Section 2.20.090(b). Roll call found all in favor; 
passed and so ordered.   

 
 
3. STAFF ITEMS – Karin Schnaider Assistant City Manager, shared two staff items: (1) the 

committee agreed to go dark with the Council calendar in the month of July and there 
will be no meetings in July and (2) in August will be returning with the calendar for the 
rest of the year and will poll committee members in September and November to ensure 
a quorum is available. 
 
Committee comments followed.  



THAC Minutes  June 15, 2023 

 

 
5. COMMITTEE ITEMS – None  

 
6. ADJOURNMENT – Time: 10:22 p.m. 

 
ACTION: Motion was made by Vice Chairperson Bedolla and seconded by Chairperson 

Davis to adjourn. Roll call found all in favor; passed and so ordered.   
 
 
The agenda was posted at City Hall on June 13, 2023. The above are action minutes. 
 

 
 
 
____________________________  
Chairperson  

 
ATTEST:  
 
_________________________ 
Deputy City Clerk 
 



 

TRACY HOMELESSNESS ADVISORY COMMITTEE  REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
 

 
August 17, 2023, 7:00 p.m. 

 
Tracy City Hall, 333 Civic Center Plaza, Tracy, CA 95376 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

CALL TO ORDER – Chairperson Davis called the meeting to order at 7:01 pm 
 
ROLL CALL – Deputy City Clerk. Roll call found Chairperson Davis and Vice Chairperson 

Bedolla 
 
 
1. ITEMS FROM THE AUDIENCE– No public comment. 
 
2. REGULAR AGENDA 
 
 

3.A The Tracy Homelessness Advisory Committee receive an informational report 
regarding the implementation of the City Council Strategic Plan to End and 
Prevent Homelessness and the most recent Emergency Interim Shelter activities. 
  
Virginia Carney, Homeless Services Manager provided the staff report, 
presentation and responded to questions. 
 
Adriana Castaneda, Director of Mobility and Housing responded to questions. 
 
Joanne Gregonis, spoke about DB4 and how she understands why it’s being 
considered hazardous due to the fire, but does not understand if it is so 
hazardous why the proper PPE is not being used by City employees cleaning up 
the area.  
 
Shelia Patterson, asked about the demographics of the homeless community in 
Tracy, the services that are being offered like case management, work programs 
and if there are time restrictions to stay in the shelter and how the waitlist is 
managed.  
 
Melinda Ramirez, asked if there were any updates on the new shelter provider 
and when the community can expect to receive this information.  

 
Committee comments followed. 
 

  
3.B The Tracy Homelessness Advisory Committee recommend that the City Council 

adopt a resolution by a four-fifths vote (1) making a determination that 
compliance with standard procurement process is not in the best interest of the 
City and dispense the bidding requirements for the additional scope of work 



THAC Minutes  August 17, 2023 

 

pursuant to California Public Contract Code Section 22050 and Tracy Municipal 
Code Section 2.20.270(a) and (2) City Council retroactively approve the following 
general services agreement prior to presenting to the Tracy Homelessness 
Advisory Committee due to the emergency nature of the housing crisis and the 
impending grant deadlines, a formal bidding process under the Public Contract 
Code will prevent the City from addressing the immediate need to provide shelter 
to the unhoused (3) approving general services agreements with Tennyson 
Electric Inc. for the installation of all electrical utilities and GradeTech, Inc. for the 
additional construction work required, including underground utilities, as part of 
the site improvements for the Phase IV Custom Containers at the Temporary 
Emergency Housing Facility, CIP 71112, at 370 Arbor Avenue and (4) approving 
an amendment to the construction contract with GradeTech, Inc. and Tennyson 
Electric Inc. for Capital Improvement Project (CIP) 71112 Arbor Temporary 
Emergency Housing Project expanding the scope of work in the amount of 
$135,000 in anticipated work for a total not to exceed amount of $435,000 for 
GradeTech, Inc and expanding the scope of work in the amount of $30,110 in 
anticipated work for a total not to exceed amount of $155,110 for Tennyson 
Electric Inc. 

  
Ilene Macintire, Senior Civil Engineer provided the staff report and responded to 
questions. 

 
No public comment. 
 
No committee questions or comments. 
 

ACTION:  Motion was made by Vice Chairperson Bedolla and seconded by Chairperson 
Davis approving the general service agreement with GradeTech, Inc. and 
Tennyson Electric, Inc and approving an amendment to the construction contract 
with GradeTech, Inc. and Tennyson Electric, Inc for CIP 71112, expanding the 
scope of work in the amount of $135,000 in anticipated work for a total not to 
exceed amount of $435,000 for GradeTech, Inc and expanding the scope of work 
in the amount of $30,110 in anticipated work for a total not to exceed amount of 
$155,110 for Tennyson Electric Inc. Roll call found all in favor; passed and so 
ordered. 

 
 

3.C The Tracy Homelessness Advisory Committee recommend that the City Council 
adopt a resolution: 1) Authorizing the acceptance of a grant award from San 
Joaquin County Homelessness Housing Assistance and Prevention Round 3 
allocation in the amount of $251,795 to partially fund operations costs of the 
Tracy Interim Shelter Site (renamed Phase III and Phase IV of the Temporary 
Emergency Housing Facility, CIP 71112); and 2) Appropriating $251,795 of the 
total grant funds to the Mobility and Housing Department, Homeless Services 
Division.  
 
Virginia Carney, Homeless Services Manager provided the staff report and 
responded to questions. 
 
No public comment. 
 



THAC Minutes  August 17, 2023 

 

No committee questions or comments. 
 

ACTION: Motion was made by Vice Chairperson Bedolla and seconded by Chairperson 
Davis to accept the grant award from San Joaquin County Homelessness 
Housing Assistance and Prevention Round 3 allocation in the amount of 
$251,795 to partially fund operations costs of the Tracy Interim Shelter Site 
(renamed Phase III and Phase IV of the Temporary Emergency Housing Facility, 
and appropriate $251,795 of the total grant funds to the Mobility and Housing 
Department, Homeless Services Division. Roll call found all in favor; passed and 
so ordered. 

 
 
3. STAFF ITEMS – Brian MacDonald shared that the RFP for Construction Management 

Services for Phase II of the Temporary Emergency Housing Facility (TEHF) will be 
closing tomorrow. Mr. MacDonald also shared that the RFP for TEHF Operator closed 
on Monday and two proposals were received.   
 
No committee questions or comments. 
  
 

5. COMMITTEE ITEMS – None  
 

6. ADJOURNMENT – Time: 7:33 p.m. 
 

ACTION: Motion was made by Vice Chairperson Bedolla and seconded by Chairperson 
Davis to adjourn. Roll call found all in favor; passed and so ordered.   

 
 
The agenda was posted at City Hall on August 16, 2023. The above are action minutes. 
 

 
 
 
____________________________  
Chairperson  

 
ATTEST:  
 
_________________________ 
Deputy City Clerk 
 



       October 19, 2023 
 

Agenda Item 3.A 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION  
 
Staff recommends the Tracy Homelessness Advisory Committee receive an 
informational update regarding homeless services and the Temporary Emergency 
Housing Facility project. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
This informational report provides an update on the City of Tracy’s efforts to address 
the impacts of homelessness and quality of life issues in the community, including an 
update on the City’s emergency interim shelter activities. 
 
BACKGROUND AND LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 
 
The 2022 San Joaquin Continuum of Care Point in Time (PIT) Count of Sheltered 
and Unsheltered Homeless reflects 124 unsheltered homeless individuals living 
within Tracy’s city limits. Recognizing the importance of responding to quality-of-life 
issues, including the human services needs of the City’s unsheltered population, the 
City has devoted significant resources toward addressing the impacts of 
homelessness within the community. Staff continues to coordinate efforts between 
various departments to conduct bi-weekly clean-ups of public spaces, foster 
partnerships with non-profit organizations to share information on services and 
programs with the unsheltered, secure grants to support homeless services, and 
continue with the construction activities of the Temporary Emergency Housing 
Facility. City staff has worked vigorously to balance the circumstances of the 
unsheltered, as well as the needs of the community. 
 
Pursuant to Council’s reaffirmation of the emergency shelter crisis in August of 2022, 
the City Manager authorized staff to identify permanent and emergency alternative 
housing options for the unsheltered population within the city limits. This effort not 
only focuses on the housing and support, but also to prepare the residents for self-
sufficiency. As a result, the development of a “Campus Concept” emerged where 
temporary housing and Supportive Services would be provided to the unsheltered 
population. 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
Outreach Update 
 
The City’s homeless outreach efforts focus on our most vulnerable unsheltered 
populations who are experiencing homelessness. This includes, but is not limited to, 
transitional-aged youth (aged 18-24), veterans, the LGBTQ+ community, victims of 

http://www.sanjoaquincoc.org/point-in-time-sjc/
http://www.sanjoaquincoc.org/point-in-time-sjc/


 
 
Agenda Item 3.A 
October 19, 2023 
Page 2 
 

 

crime and those with behavioral health needs. The 2022 Tracy PIT data reflects two 
transitional-aged individuals, six veterans, and at least 30 unsheltered individuals with 
behavioral health issues counted. The Homeless Services Division has identified a need 
for additional supportive services within the system of care for our elderly and disabled 
population - most shelter guests are over the age of 54. We are working closely with our 
managed care plans to implement additional support services for this vulnerable 
population. The Homeless Services Manager works closely with the Hospital Council 
across both San Joaquin and Stanislaus Counties through focus and work groups 
targeting more support and awareness to our growing sub population of elderly and 
disabled unsheltered residents. 
 
Encampment Outreach Activities  
 
Weekly checks of former encampment sites located on Union Pacific (railroad) and 
Caltrans properties, as well as parks, city property and private property were conducted 
this month.  
 
One large encampment on private property (Paradise and Pescadero) was identified 
and the property owner was notified and advised on how to properly post the property 
for “Private Property/No Trespassing.” The property owner was also provided with a 
trespass form to complete and provide to Tracy Police Department so they can enforce 
trespassing violations on the owner’s behalf, and require violators vacate the property. 
The signage has been posted, but the completed trespass form has yet to be received. 
Code Enforcement also sent a letter to the property owner to have the property abated 
and cleaned up.  
 
A smaller encampment was also located on private property (330 W. Grant Line Rd.) 
Code Enforcement is working with the property owner to secure a trespass letter and 
abate the property. The property owner was also notified that the area would need to be 
posted “Private Property No Trespassing,” and the property would need to be re-
secured with new fencing. 
 
Areas of El Pescadero Park are being fenced off as a precautionary public safety 
measure to mitigate potential tree hazards, evaluate the safety and condition of the 
landscaping, and prepare for scheduled maintenance like tree trimming. El Pescadero 
Park has been selected as the site of a new multi-generation recreation center. 
 
On September 26, 2023, encampments and hazards were removed at Detention Basin 
5 (DB5)/Plascencia Fields located at 2200 Krohn Rd., by Tracy Police, Code 
Enforcement and Public Works personnel. 
 
September 2023 Encampment Activities:  
  

• Seven arrests (cited and released) for storage or dumping of personal items, 
including without limitation: car parts, bicycle parts, bicycles, furniture, 
appliances, generators, propane tanks, or combustible materials (4.16.180(w) 



 
 
Agenda Item 3.A 
October 19, 2023 
Page 3 
 

 

TMC) 
• Five tent site removals 
• Approximately 8.6 tons of trash/debris removed from parks.  

 
Trine Integrated Services, Inc. Security  
Trine Security provided 24-hour security services at City parks and facilities in support 
of Tracy Police Department through September 21, 2023. Daily activity reports were 
provided to Tracy Police Department until expiration of the contract and there are no 
plans to extend the agreement. 
 
September, 2023 Familiar Faces Activities: 

• 187 Client Contacts in Public Spaces 
• 1 shelter intake  
• 21 Clients Successfully Added to Shelter Waitlist 

 
The Familiar Faces team continues to assist with shelter intake, transportation, 
organizing, and networking with non-profit and faith-based providers to identify gaps 
and solutions for the unique challenges faced by those experiencing homelessness 
in our community. Police patrol teams continue to work collaboratively on how to best 
utilize the Familiar Faces team when out on patrol.  
 
The Familiar Faces team, assigned to Tracy Police Department, is working with a 
consultant to ensure objectives are being met and adopting operating policies and 
guidelines for the development of a Homeless Response System within our city-wide 
efforts that supports our City’s Homelessness Strategic Plan.  
 
September, 2023 Tracy Community Connections Center Activities: 

• 142 Clients Contacted in Public Spaces  
• 8 shelter intakes  
• 38 Clients on the Shelter Waitlist  
• 46 Shelter Refusals  

 
October will be the last month reporting out for Tracy community Connections Center. 
Their contract with the City ends on October 31, 2023. The city of Tracy has no plans 
to extend this agreement. 
 
Tracy Community Connections Center reports supporting a total of 190 unique 
individuals through their Navigation Center for their pre shelter intake and referral 
services to date.  
 
City Net Shelter Operations through September 30, 2023 
 
City Net reports having supported 137 unique individuals at the Temporary 
Emergency Housing Campus since November 14, 2022. They are providing ongoing 
case management support to all shelter residents. To date, 16 individuals have exited 
the shelter to another housing destination (“positive exits”).  



 
 
Agenda Item 3.A 
October 19, 2023 
Page 4 
 

 

Cumulative Totals of Shelter Services* 
 

 
 
As of September 30, 2023, the shelter is at capacity with 48 individuals and 14 pets 
staying there. There are an additional 32 individuals on the waiting list who have 
already been through Tracy Community Connections Center’s intake process and are 
awaiting an available shelter bed. 
 
Effective November 1, 2023, shelter operations will transition from City Net to The 
Salvation Army.  
 
September, 2023 TRACER Fixed Route H Bus Service Activities: 

• 89 Boardings 
• 3.56 Passengers/Day Average 

 
TRACER has provided transportation to/from the Temporary Emergency Housing 
Facility site for a total of 636 Passengers (2.33/Day average) since November, 2022.  



 
 
Agenda Item 3.A 
October 19, 2023 
Page 5 
 

 

Temporary Emergency Housing Facility Design Update 
 
The final draft Phase II bid documents, plans, and contract specifications are being 
finalized so the project can be advertised as soon as the required National 
Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) process is complete. The draft package was 
transmitted for review to Roebbelen, our new Construction Management team, who 
have been awarded an agreement for construction management services.  
Roebbelen’s input will be considered for inclusion in the final bid documents. 
 
Administrative Office Space 
 
During the design phase of the TEHF project, administrative office space that exceeded 
the office space available in the primary site structure was added to accommodate City 
Homeless Services Department staff and outside service providers who would need 
space to meet with TEHF residents on site.  A new modular office building was included 
in the initial project construction documents, and the price bid to furnish and install the 
building was nearly $700,000. Recently, design staff learned that Boyd Service Center 
has several modular structures on site that had been declared surplus property. There 
is a 24’ wide by 60’ long modular building at Boyd that can be included in the design of 
the TEHF project. 

The modular office structure is 1,440 square feet and contains two ADA-sized 
restrooms, a 170-square-foot conference room, five offices, a 192-square-foot 
reception area, and an area that was formerly a kitchenette. Operations reports that 
the building roof is in good condition and the HVAC units are in working order. The 
interior of the structure needs new flooring, and modifications are needed for the 
suspended ceiling and restrooms to meet current codes for accessibility. The data & 
communications system probably needs to be upgraded, but there are data ports in 
all of the rooms. The exterior envelope needs some refreshing and minor repairs. A 
prefabricated accessible ramp and stairs will also be required. The estimate for the 
work needed to refurbish the modular office building is $250,000, and relocation 
costs would be about $20,000. Refurbishing this existing City-owned structure would 
be a significant savings over the cost of a new modular building and would provide 
the additional critical office space.   
 
Current Construction Activity 
 
Phase IV: Underground work for infrastructure to the custom containers is nearly 
complete and concrete foundations for the security camera poles were poured last 
week. Work to improve the temporary access road is also underway. Some additional 
work was required to address modifications to the fire alarm and fire sprinkler 
systems. Concrete pads and security cages to prevent tampering were added at the 
locations of the backflow preventors. That work will be eliminated from the Phase II 
design work and will provide additional security to the fire alarm and sprinkler 
systems. An additional light pole is needed to ensure security camera coverage 
behind the temporary restrooms and showers, additional lighting will benefit the 
whole campus. 



 
 
Agenda Item 3.A 
October 19, 2023 
Page 6 
 

 

When completed, Phase IV will provide an additional 38 single occupancy rooms.    
Delivery of the first four units is currently scheduled for October 23, and staff is 
checking in with the vendor twice a week to stay current on the progress. 
 
Phase II: The Phase II Site Improvements that include the sprung structure and the 
build out of all the site improvements will be advertised for bid as soon as the NEPA 
process is completed, and the federal funds are officially released for use by HUD.  
 
If the NEPA process proceeds as expected, the required documentation from HUD 
should be received near the end of November.  The construction bid documents will 
be ready for advertisement as soon as the NEPA process is complete. Currently the 
project architect and staff are preparing a draft set of bid documents for Roebbelen, 
the construction management consultant to review and provide comments on.  
 
Other Construction Items in Progress: 
 

• Phase III & IV Permanent Power Installation: Early August, 2024  
o Phase III and IV: Early August, 2024 
o Phase II: Mid-September, 2024  

• Lift Station: End of June, 2024  
o Not operational until power supply installation complete. 

 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
This update is provided as informational.  The City funds Homeless Services through 
the General Fund and various grants. 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN  
This item supports the following City Council Fiscal Year 2023-25 Strategic Priorities: 
 

Public Safety Goal #3, Objective 2: Address blight through partnerships with 
Code  Enforcement, the Familiar Faces Program, and the Homeless Services 
Division  

 
Quality of Life Goal #5: Continue to implement the Council-Adopted  

  Homelessness Strategic Plan: 
 

Goal 1: Increase Housing Options in the City of Tracy 
Goal 2: Increase Access to Coordinated Support Services for People 
    Experiencing Homelessness 
Goal 3: Develop Action Plans for Engaging with People Experiencing 

Homelessness 
Goal 4: Enact Specific Strategies for Vulnerable Subpopulations      

Experiencing Homelessness  
 
 

https://www.cityoftracy.org/home/showpublisheddocument/1624/637452005914800000


 
 
Agenda Item 3.A 
October 19, 2023 
Page 7 
 

 

ACTION REQUESTED OF THE COMMITTEE 
 
Staff recommends the Tracy Homelessness Advisory Committee receive an 
informational update regarding homeless services and the Temporary Emergency 
Housing Facility project.  
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
Attachment A- Tracy Homelessness Advisory Committee Update PowerPoint 
 
Prepared by: Virginia Carney, Homeless Services Manager  
 
Approved by: Brian MacDonald, Interim Assistant City Manager 
 
 
 
 
 
 



3.
A

 In
fo

rm
at

io
na

l U
pd

at
e:

 H
om

el
es

s 
Se

rv
ic

es
 

an
d 

th
e 

Te
m

po
ra

ry
 E

m
er

ge
nc

y 
H

ou
si

ng
 F

ac
ili

ty
 P

ro
je

ct
 

(T
EH

F)

O
ct

ob
er

 1
9,

 2
02

3

At
ta

ch
m

en
t A



O
V

ER
V

IE
W

2•
O

ut
re

ac
h

•
Vu

ln
er

ab
le

 S
ub

-P
op

ul
at

io
ns

•
En

ga
ge

m
en

t a
t E

nc
am

pm
en

ts
•

Pr
ov

id
er

 U
pd

at
es

•
Tr

ac
y 

C
om

m
un

ity
 C

on
ne

ct
io

ns
 C

en
te

r
•

Fa
m

ili
ar

 F
ac

es
•

Tr
in

e 
Se

cu
ri

ty

•
Sh

el
te

r O
pe

ra
tio

ns
 –

C
ity

 N
et

•
Tr

an
sp

or
ta

tio
n 

–
TR

A
C

ER
 B

us
 R

ou
te

 H

•
Te

m
po

ra
ry

 E
m

er
ge

nc
y 

H
ou

si
ng

 F
ac

ili
ty

 
D

es
ig

n 
an

d 
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

U
pd

at
es

•
H

om
el

es
s S

er
vi

ce
s 

D
iv

is
io

n 
U

pd
at

es



O
U

TR
EA

C
H

:
Vu

ln
er

ab
le

 S
ub

-P
op

ul
at

io
ns

3

•
O

ut
re

ac
h 

Ef
fo

rt
s F

oc
us

 o
n 

M
os

t V
ul

ne
ra

bl
e 

U
ns

he
lte

re
d 

Po
pu

la
tio

ns
 o

f t
he

 1
24

 R
ef

le
ct

ed
 in

 2
02

2 
Po

in
t-i

n-
Ti

m
e 

C
ou

nt
:

•
Tr

an
si

tio
na

l A
ge

d 
Yo

ut
h 

(1
8-

24
 y

ea
rs

 o
ld

) -
2

•
LG

BT
Q

+ 
co

m
m

un
ity

 
•

V
ic

tim
s 

of
 C

ri
m

e 
 

•
In

di
vi

du
al

s w
ith

 B
eh

av
io

ra
l H

ea
lth

 N
ee

ds
 

•
Ve

te
ra

ns
 -

6
•

El
de

rl
y 

an
d 

D
is

ab
le

d 
–

M
os

t S
he

lte
r G

ue
st

s 
ar

e 
54

+ 

•
St

ra
te

gy
 –

Ex
pa

nd
 C

ou
nt

y 
Pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

p:
•

Be
ha

vi
or

al
 H

ea
lth

 a
nd

 W
ho

le
 P

er
so

n 
C

ar
e 

C
ol

la
bo

ra
tiv

e 
Ef

fo
rt

s
o

Q
ua

rt
er

ly
 P

ro
vi

de
r M

ee
tin

gs
•

M
an

ag
ed

 C
ar

e 
Pl

an
s w

ith
 H

os
pi

ta
l C

ou
nc

il



O
U

TR
EA

C
H

: 
En

ga
ge

m
en

t a
t E

nc
am

pm
en

ts

4

•
W

ee
kl

y 
C

he
ck

s o
f F

or
m

er
 E

nc
am

pm
en

ts
 S

ite
s

•
C

od
e 

En
fo

rc
em

en
t i

s 
W

or
ki

ng
 w

ith
 S

ev
er

al
 P

ri
va

te
 

Pr
op

er
ty

 O
w

ne
rs

 to
 A

dd
re

ss
 E

nc
am

pm
en

ts
 o

n 
Th

ei
r 

Pr
op

er
ty

•
D

et
en

tio
n 

Ba
si

n 
5 

(P
la

sc
en

ci
a 

Fi
el

ds
) A

ba
te

m
en

t



O
U

TR
EA

C
H

: 
Pr

ov
id

er
s U

pd
at

e

Se
pt

em
be

r, 
20

23
 F

am
ili

ar
 F

ac
es

 A
ct

iv
iti

es
:

•
18

7 
C

lie
nt

 C
on

ta
ct

s 
in

 P
ub

lic
 S

pa
ce

s
•

1 
Sh

el
te

r I
nt

ak
e

•
21

 C
lie

nt
s 

on
 th

e 
Sh

el
te

r W
ai

tli
st

Se
pt

em
be

r, 
20

23
 T

ra
cy

 C
om

m
un

ity
 C

on
ne

ct
io

ns
 C

en
te

r A
ct

iv
iti

es
:

•
14

2 
C

lie
nt

 C
on

ta
ct

s 
in

 P
ub

lic
 S

pa
ce

s
•

8 
Sh

el
te

r I
nt

ak
es

•
38

 C
lie

nt
s 

on
 th

e 
Sh

el
te

r W
ai

tli
st

Se
pt

em
be

r, 
20

23
 T

ri
ne

 In
te

gr
at

ed
 S

er
vi

ce
s,

 In
c.

 S
ec

ur
ity

:
•

Pr
ov

id
ed

 2
4-

ho
ur

 s
ec

ur
ity

 s
er

vi
ce

s a
t C

ity
 P

ar
ks

 a
nd

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s i
n 

su
pp

or
t o

f 
Tr

ac
y 

Po
lic

e 
D

ep
t. 

th
ro

ug
h 

Se
pt

em
be

r 2
1,

 2
02

3
•

C
on

tr
ac

t h
as

 e
xp

ir
ed

 a
nd

 th
er

e 
ar

e 
no

 p
la

ns
 to

 e
xt

en
d

5



SH
EL

TE
R 

O
PE

RA
TI

O
N

S:
C

ity
 N

et
 C

um
ul

at
iv

e 
To

ta
ls

6

Sh
el

te
r S

er
vi

ce
s

To
ta

ls
To

ta
l C

lie
nt

s 
Se

rv
ed

13
7

A
pp

oi
nt

m
en

t H
ou

rs
1,

10
0

Em
pl

oy
m

en
t A

ss
is

ta
nc

e
91

H
ea

lth
 In

su
ra

nc
e

48

ID
 C

ar
ds

 R
ep

la
ce

d
41

M
en

ta
l H

ea
lth

 R
ef

er
ra

ls
56

So
ci

al
 S

ec
ur

ity
 C

ar
ds

57

Su
bs

ta
nc

e 
U

se
 R

ef
er

ra
l

17

Vu
ln

er
ab

ili
ty

 In
de

x 
–

Se
rv

ic
e 

Pr
io

ri
tiz

at
io

n 
D

ec
is

io
n 

A
ss

is
ta

nc
e 

To
ol

 (V
I-S

PD
A

T)
 

C
om

pl
et

io
n

36

Pe
t C

ar
e

28

Li
fe

 S
ki

lls
13

0

A
rt

 C
la

ss
es

15

C
lo

th
in

g
13

7

M
ea

ls
43

,2
66

H
yg

ie
ne

 K
its

13
7

Bu
s 

Pa
ss

es
24

7
*A

s 
of

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

02
3

Sh
el

te
r H

ig
hl

ig
ht

s 
fo

r 
Se

pt
em

be
r:

•
A

 c
lie

nt
 a

t t
he

 s
he

lte
r 

ac
hi

ev
ed

 th
ei

r g
oa

l o
f 

co
nt

in
ui

ng
 th

ei
r e

du
ca

tio
n 

an
d 

gr
ad

ua
te

d 
fr

om
 U

EI
 

C
ol

le
ge

 a
s 

a 
m

ed
ic

al
 a

ss
is

ta
nt

 
an

d 
is

 a
w

ai
tin

g 
th

e 
st

ar
t o

f 
th

e 
ex

te
rn

sh
ip

 p
ro

gr
am

.

•
A

 c
lie

nt
 a

ch
ie

ve
d 

th
ei

r g
oa

l 
of

 o
bt

ai
ni

ng
 e

m
pl

oy
m

en
t 

an
d 

is
 n

ow
 w

or
ki

ng
 to

w
ar

ds
 

pe
rm

an
en

t h
ou

si
ng

.



SH
EL

TE
R

 O
PE

R
A

TI
O

N
S 

7

•
13

7 
In

di
vi

du
al

s*
 S

er
ve

d:

•
16

 “
Po

si
tiv

e 
Ex

its
” 

to
 H

ou
si

ng

•
M

os
t S

he
lte

r G
ue

st
s 

ar
e 

Se
ni

or
s 

(5
5+

)

•
10

 C
ur

re
nt

 C
lie

nt
s 

Em
pl

oy
ed

•
16

 In
di

vi
du

al
s 

Su
cc

es
sf

ul
ly

 C
on

ne
ct

ed
 

to
 S

oc
ia

l S
ec

ur
ity

 B
en

ef
its

  

*A
s 

of
 S

ep
te

m
be

r 3
0,

 2
02

3 

Presenter Notes
Presentation Notes
The largest age group of our population at our shelter are between the ages of 55 and 64 at 35% with an additional 16% that are over the age of 65




TR
A

N
SP

O
RT

A
TI

O
N

:
TR

A
C

ER
 B

us
 R

ou
te

 H

8

Se
pt

em
be

r, 
20

23
 T

ra
ns

po
rt

at
io

n 
U

pd
at

es
:

•
89

 b
oa

rd
in

gs
 w

ith
 a

n 
av

er
ag

e 
of

 3
.5

6 
pa

ss
en

ge
rs

 p
er

 d
ay

•
Si

nc
e 

N
ov

em
be

r o
f 2

02
2 

w
e 

ha
ve

 h
ad

 6
36

 p
as

se
ng

er
s 

w
ith

 a
n 

av
er

ag
e 

of
 

2.
34

 p
as

se
ng

er
s 

pe
r d

ay



TE
M

PO
RA

RY
 E

M
ER

G
EN

C
Y 

H
O

U
SI

N
G

 
FA

C
IL

IT
Y 

(T
EH

F)
 C

A
M

PU
S 

C
O

N
C

EP
T

9

•
Ph

as
e 

I:
Si

te
 P

re
pa

ra
tio

n 
&

 U
nd

er
gr

ou
nd

 U
til

iti
es

 -
C

om
pl

et
e

•
Ph

as
e 

II
: S

ite
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 &

 S
pr

un
g 

St
ru

ct
ur

e 
–

Re
-b

id
 L

at
e 

N
ov

em
be

r/
Ea

rl
y 

D
ec

em
be

r (
Te

nt
at

iv
e 

-C
on

tin
ge

nt
 o

n 
N

EP
A

)

•
Ph

as
e 

II
I:

M
od

ul
ar

s 
–

48
 B

ed
s i

n 
O

pe
ra

tio
n

•
Ph

as
e 

IV
: C

us
to

m
 C

on
ta

in
er

s 
–

Ei
gh

t C
us

to
m

 C
on

ta
in

er
 D

or
m

ito
ry

 
U

ni
ts

 B
ei

ng
 D

el
iv

er
ed

, P
ro

vi
di

ng
 3

8 
A

dd
iti

on
al

 B
ed

s i
n 

N
ov

em
be

r



TE
H

F 
D

es
ig

n 
an

d 
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

U
pd

at
es

10

Ph
as

e 
IV

 U
pd

at
e

•
U

nd
er

gr
ou

nd
 w

or
k 

fo
r i

nf
ra

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
to

 C
us

to
m

 C
on

ta
in

er
s

•
O

ct
ob

er
 2

02
3:

 D
el

iv
er

y 
of

 L
in

ke
d 

Eq
ui

pm
en

t C
on

ta
in

er
s

Ph
as

e 
II

 U
pd

at
e

•
O

ng
oi

ng
: N

EP
A

 S
tu

dy
•

Ro
eb

be
le

n-
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

M
gm

t. 
C

on
su

lta
nt

O
th

er
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

It
em

s 
In

 P
ro

gr
es

s 
A

re
:

•
In

st
al

la
tio

n 
of

 p
er

m
an

en
t p

ow
er

 fo
r P

ha
se

s 
II

I &
 IV

 is
 

an
tic

ip
at

ed
 to

 b
e 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 e

ar
ly

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

02
4.

•
In

st
al

la
tio

n 
of

 p
er

m
an

en
t p

ow
er

 fo
r P

ha
se

 II
 is

 a
nt

ic
ip

at
ed

 to
 

be
 c

om
pl

et
ed

 b
y 

O
ct

ob
er

 2
02

4.
•

C
om

pl
et

io
n 

of
 th

e 
lif

t s
ta

tio
n 

is
 a

nt
ic

ip
at

ed
 to

 b
e 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 

by
 th

e 
en

d 
of

 Ju
ly

 2
02

4.
 B

ut
 w

ill
 n

ot
 b

e 
in

 o
pe

ra
tio

n 
un

til
 th

e 
po

w
er

 s
up

pl
y 

is
 c

om
pl

et
e.



H
O

M
EL

ES
S 

SE
RV

IC
ES

 
D

IV
IS

IO
N

 U
PD

A
TE

S

11

•
N

ew
 S

he
lte

r O
pe

ra
to

r t
o 

Be
gi

n 
N

ov
em

be
r 1

st
(T

he
 S

al
va

tio
n 

A
rm

y)

•
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

M
an

ag
em

en
t S

er
vi

ce
s f

or
 P

ha
se

 II
 -

Si
te

 Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

•
A

dd
iti

on
al

 T
em

po
ra

ry
 S

ho
w

er
s 

an
d 

Re
st

ro
om

s 
fo

r P
ha

se
 IV

 C
us

to
m

 
C

on
ta

in
er

s

•
A

cc
ep

ta
nc

e 
of

 $
25

1,
79

5 
G

ra
nt

 A
w

ar
d 

fr
om

 S
an

 Jo
aq

ui
n 

C
ou

nt
y 

H
om

el
es

sn
es

s 
H

ou
si

ng
 A

ss
is

ta
nc

e 
an

d 
Pr

ev
en

tio
n 

-R
ou

nd
 3

•
N

ex
t H

om
el

es
sn

es
s A

dv
is

or
y 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 M

ee
tin

g:
 N

ov
em

be
r 1

6th
at

 7
:0

0 
PM

R
ec

en
t T

ra
cy

 H
om

el
es

sn
es

s 
A

dv
is

or
y 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 (T

H
A

C
) &

 
C

ou
nc

il 
A

ct
io

ns
/A

pp
ro

va
ls



D
is

cu
ss

io
n

12



October 19, 2023 
 

Agenda Item 3.B 
 
 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends that the Tracy Homelessness Advisory Committee recommend that 
City Council adopt a Resolution: 1) Authorizing the acceptance of a grant award from 
Health Plan of San Joaquin in the amount of $595,000 to partially fund the continued 
operation of the Tracy Interim Shelter Site; and 2) Appropriating the total grant funds to 
the Mobility and Housing Department, Homeless Services Division budget. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
This item provides Council with an opportunity to receive a grant award in the amount of 
$595,000 from Health Plan of San Joaquin for the Tracy Interim Shelter Site project (renamed 
Phase III and Phase IV of the Temporary Emergency Housing Facility). This grant is funded 
by Health Plan of San Joaquin County and is in support of providing additional housing 
options within specific geographic areas that do not currently have projects that support those 
experiencing homelessness and who are also Medi-Cal beneficiaries.   
 
BACKGROUND AND LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 
 
The Tracy Interim Shelter Site project (renamed Phase III and Phase IV of the Temporary 
Emergency Housing Facility) was authorized in August 2022 under an emergency shelter 
declaration to advance the needs to house the unsheltered in Tracy. On August 16, 2022, 
staff recommended that City Council reject the single bid received for the Temporary 
Emergency Housing Facility Project on Arbor Avenue, Site Improvements Construction 
Package 2 (renamed Phase II), CIP 71112, and authorize staff to re-advertise the project and 
rebid of the project.  As this created a delay, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 2022-
121 (“Resolution”), which reaffirmed an emergency shelter crisis as the City of Tracy 
continues to experience an increasing number of unsheltered individuals. Under this 
authorization, the City Manager entered into a five-year lease agreement for Modular Units 
and an Administration Unit, that will provide approximately 48 beds for individuals; and a one-
year lease for generators. This project has been renamed Phase III of the Temporary 
Emergency Housing Facility.  In addition, the City Manager purchased eight Custom 
Containers to provide approximately 38 beds for individuals. This project has been renamed 
Phase IV of the Temporary Emergency Housing Facility. 
 
In May of 2023, Health Plan of San Joaquin met with the City’s Homeless Services Manager 
to discuss additional funding availability for our Tracy Interim Shelter project. Health Plan of 
San Joaquin requested a proposal outlining the additional funding needs for the Tracy Interim 
Shelter Site project (renamed Phase III and Phase IV of the Temporary Emergency Housing 
Facility). In early June of 2023 the City was notified of the additional award in the amount of 
$595,000 to fund additional needs at the Tracy Interim shelter site. 

 
 
 
 
 



Agenda Item 3.B 
October 19, 2023 
Page 2  

ANALYSIS 
 

The Tracy Interim Shelter Site (renamed Phase III and Phase IV of the Temporary 
Emergency Housing Facility) project is part of the overall shelter campus project, parts of 
which are in various phases of design, development, and/or construction.  This grant funding 
will be used to cover capital expenses, including the eight custom container units, existing 
modulars, and operating costs that will ultimately house up to 38 individuals.  This project is 
intended to provide a site for those seeking shelter within the City limits. To that end, the City 
of Tracy will collaborate with the Health Plan of San Joaquin to provide additional resources 
and support to the City’s unsheltered population as they are housed.  Approval of this item will 
accept the grant. 

 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
The Mobility and Housing Department, Homeless Services Division will receive $595,000 in 
grant funds from the Health Plan of San Joaquin to fund the Tracy Interim Shelter Site. The 
$595,000 grant is to be appropriated to the FY2022-23 Homeless Services division operating 
budget. No City match is required. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CEQA DETERMINATION 
 
A CEQA determination is not required for this item. 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN 
 
This agenda item supports City Council’s Homelessness Strategic Plan. 

 
 
 
 
 



Agenda Item 3.B 
October 19, 2023 
Page 3  

 
ACTION REQUESTED OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
 
Staff recommends that the Tracy Homelessness Advisory Committee recommend that City 
Council adopt a Resolution: 1) Authorizing the acceptance of a grant award from Health Plan of 
San Joaquin in the amount of $595,000 to partially fund the continued operation of the Tracy 
Interim Shelter Site; and 2) Appropriating the total grant funds to the Mobility and Housing 
Department, Homeless Services Division budget. 
 

ATTACHMENTS 
 
Attachment A – City of Tracy MOU Health Plan of San Joaquin 

 
 

Prepared by: Virginia Carney, Homeless Services Manager  
 
Reviewed by: Sara Cowell, Director of Finance 

     Bijal Patel, City Attorney 
  Brian MacDonald, Interim Assistant City Manager 
 

   Approved by: Midori Lichtwardt, Interim City Manager 



    

{00207385.2} HPSJ / City of Tracy 
Effective 09/14/2023 

CONFIDENTIAL Page 1 of 10 

                                     
 

Attachment A 
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

BETWEEN 
HEALTH PLAN OF SAN JOAQUIN 

AND 
CITY OF TRACY 

 
THIS MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (“MOU”) is made and entered into the 14th 
day of September 2023  by and between the SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY HEALTH 
COMMISSION, operating and doing business as HEALTH PLAN OF SAN JOAQUIN 
(“HPSJ”), a local initiative established under Section 5-7100 of the Ordinance Code of San 
Joaquin County, with a principal place of business at 7751 South Manthey Road, French Camp, 
CA 95231-9802 and City of Tracy (“City”), with a principal place of business at 333 Civic 
Center Plaza, Tracy, CA 95376. 
The purpose of this MOU is to establish guidelines for a cooperative working relationship 
between HPSJ and City for successful implementation of incentive payments linked to the 
Housing and Homelessness Incentive Program (“HHIP”).  
 
Whereas, as part of efforts to meet HHIP priorities and measures, HPSJ will partner with local 
partners and organizations which deliver housing, or supportive services to Medi-Cal members 
who are homeless or at risk of homelessness.  
 
Whereas, City provides housing, or supportive services to address homelessness or housing 
insecurity for HPSJ Medi-Cal members.  

 
Whereas, City’s project(s) have been identified as an investment activity based on the City’s 
HHIP initial project submission.   
 
Whereas, HPSJ is responsible for oversight and administration of payments to City consistent 
with the terms of the HHIP. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS AGREED between the parties as follows: 
1) EFFECTIVE DATE AND TERM 

a. This MOU shall be effective July 14, 2023, and will continue through and including 
March 31, 2024 or dates determined by the Department of Health Care Services 
(“DHCS”), unless otherwise terminated by either party to this MOU as prescribed in 
paragraph 8. 
 
 



    

{00207385.2} HPSJ / City of Tracy 
Effective 09/14/2023 

CONFIDENTIAL Page 2 of 10 

                                     
 

2)    SCOPE OF WORK 
a. City is responsible for the implementation of and compliance with the HHIP project 

description set forth in its Exhibit A, which is herein incorporated by reference, 
including reporting of incremental achievement of milestones and objectives. City 
shall promptly notify HPSJ of any material change in information submitted in 
support of the project(s) or the HHIP application, including changes in organizational 
leadership, business operations, and financial standing. HPSJ is responsible for 
overseeing the project(s), specifically to monitor and verify milestone achievement 
and administering payments consistent with the terms of the project(s) or the HHIP 
application, any terms imposed as a condition of state or federal approval of the 
HHIP, and any subsequent DHCS guidance related to HHIP.  

 
3) RESPONSIBILITIES OF CITY 

City shall provide the following: 
a. Assist HPSJ in identifying key details for investments including but not limited to 

populations served, services and activities, community needs, required funding, lead 
entities, milestones, and timing.    

 
b. Commit to identified HHIP projects, complete required application and documents 

and accept incentive funding for specified investments in support of the provision of 
housing and homelessness related services to HPSJ Medi-Cal members.  

c. Utilize HHIP incentive funding solely for identified and agreed upon investments and 
activities and for carrying out project activities and milestones as set forth in 
approved projects.  

d. Cooperate and facilitate engagement and implementation activities in support of 
HHIP goals and measures.  

e. Perform tasks necessary to projects or milestones for HHIP. City shall document and 
provide HPSJ with information necessary to demonstrate incremental progress in for 
HHIP goals and measures in a file or format as specified by HPSJ.  

f. Promptly notify HPSJ of any material change in information including changes in 
organizational leadership, business operations, and financial standing.  

g. Make efforts to establish data sharing agreements as applicable to enable timely 
exchange of member information and delivery of services. 

h. City shall ensure eligibility to receive the funds and non-duplication with other 
federal or state funding sources.   

i. Agree to comply with all applicable state and federal laws and regulations, MOU 
requirements, DHCS guidance, including All Plan Letters (“APLs”) and Policy 
Letters (“PLs”), and contractual terms and conditions as imposed by DHCS.   



    

{00207385.2} HPSJ / City of Tracy 
Effective 09/14/2023 

CONFIDENTIAL Page 3 of 10 

                                     
 

j. City shall make all premises, facilities, equipment, books, records, papers, and 
contracts, computer systems available for inspection, examination or copying for 
purposes of an audit or monitoring. 

 
4) RESPONSIBILITIES OF HPSJ 

HPSJ shall provide the following: 
a. Support partnerships between social service agencies, counties, and public health 

agencies, and public and community-based housing agencies in support of the HHIP 
goals and as efforts to address homelessness.   

b. Oversee project(s), including monitoring and verifying milestone achievement and 
administering payments consistent with the terms of the project(s) or the HHIP 
submission, and any subsequent state, federal, or DHCS guidance.  

c. Collect and evaluate information related to City’s project(s) for the purposes of 
ensuring progress toward City’s goals and objectives, program achievement and 
reporting to DHCS. 

d. HPSJ will report to the DHCS on the project status in accordance with required HHIP 
submissions and deliverables and as required by DHCS.  

e. HPSJ is responsible for the administration of HHIP funds as set forth in section 5 
below.  
 

5) FUNDING 
a. HPSJ will make incremental payments on agreed upon projects or investments as 

provided in Exhibit A. HPSJ will initiate processing of payments to City upon receipt 
of all required documents and updates.  

 
b. The specified projects will be deemed complete and fully funded only when 

milestones as set forth in Exhibit A have been met.  
 

c. There is no guarantee of funding. Funding paid by HPSJ to City may be subject to 
recoupment for reasons including but not limited to: failure to participate, failure to 
engage in minimum level of efforts, or any overpayment as identified by HPSJ.  Upon 
receipt of HPSJ’s written notification that such failures or overpayment have 
occurred, City shall promptly return the funds noted for recoupment in the 
notification, unless City disputes the recoupment, in which case the parties shall 
engage in good faith negotiations for a period of thirty (30) days to resolve such 
issues. 

 
d. HPSJ may adjust milestone measurement and related payments as needed and may 

delay payment for non-reporting or non-compliance with program terms. HPSJ will 
not make any milestone payment until all past due reporting is complete.  



    

{00207385.2} HPSJ / City of Tracy 
Effective 09/14/2023 

CONFIDENTIAL Page 4 of 10 

                                     
 

 
e. Proposed funding as outlined within Exhibit A is based on information known and 

available to HPSJ and may be modified in accordance with payments made by DHCS 
and new developments. 
 

6) LIAISON 
HPSJ and City will each designate a liaison(s) to serve as a point of contact of activities 
performed related to this MOU. 
 

7) MOU MONITORING 
HPSJ and City will meet on a mutually agreed upon frequency, or upon request to monitor 
the performance of parties’ responsibilities related to this MOU. 
 

8) REPRESENTATIONS 
Both parties to this MOU make the following representations, which are agreed to be 
material to and form a part of the inducement for this MOU: 

a. HPSJ and City have the support staff and facilities necessary to provide the services 
described in this MOU; and 

b. HPSJ and City have the expertise and authority to provide the services described in 
this MOU. 
 

9) ASSIGNMENT 
This MOU is not assignable. 
 

10) COMPENSATION 
Each party will be responsible for its own costs and fees.  
 

11) INDEMNIFICATION 
Each party agrees that it shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the other party, its 
agents, elected officials, officers, volunteers, authorized representatives, and employees 
from any and all losses, liabilities, costs, expenses, charges, damages, claims, liens, and 
causes of actions, or whatsoever kind of nature, including, but not limited to, reasonable 
attorney’s fees, which are in any manner directly or indirectly caused, occasioned or 
contributed to in whole or in part, through any act, omission, fault, or negligence, whether 
active or passive, of said party or said party’s officers, agents, employees, or authorized 
representatives, which relates in any manner to this MOU, any work to be performed by 
said party arising from the operation of this MOU, of any authorized delegated to said party 



    

{00207385.2} HPSJ / City of Tracy 
Effective 09/14/2023 

CONFIDENTIAL Page 5 of 10 

                                     
 

under this MOU, except those injuries or damages that are the result of willful acts or the 
sole negligence of the other party, its officers, agents, or employees.  

 
12) TERMINATION 

This MOU may be terminated for the following reasons: 
a. For Cause. If any party materially breaches the terms of this MOU, the other party 

shall have the following alternative remedies: 
i. Immediately terminate the MOU, if the non-breaching party reasonably believes 

the breach cannot be cured. 
ii. Provide the breaching party with written notice of non-breaching party’s intent to 

terminate the MOU, unless the breach is cured to the non-breaching party’s 
satisfaction within thirty (30) days. The parties shall engage in good faith 
negotiations to resolve such issues during such 30-day period. 

iii. All other remedies provided by law.  
iv.   

b. For Convenience. Either party to this MOU may for any reason or no reason 
terminate this MOU at any time by giving the other party thirty (30) days written 
notice of such termination. Termination shall have no effect upon the rights and 
obligations of the parties arising out of any transaction occurring prior to the effective 
date of such termination. 

c. Non-Appropriation. HPSJ reserves the right to terminate this MOU in the event 
insufficient funds are appropriated or budgeted for this MOU in any fiscal year. Upon 
such termination, thirty (30) days written notice will notify parties that such an action 
is required by HPSJ. 
If this MOU is completely or partially terminated, the records or data relating to the 
work terminated shall be transferred to HPSJ within five working days and be 
permanently removed from City’s electronic system to the extent permitted by law.  

 
13) NOTICES 

Notices to be given by one party to the other under this MOU shall be given in writing by 
email, personal delivery, by certified mail, return receipt requested, or express delivery 
service at the addresses specified below.  Notices delivered personally shall be deemed 
received upon receipt; mailed or expressed notices shall be deemed received four (4) days 
after deposit.  A party may change the address to which notice is to be given by giving 
notice as provided above. 
If to City, to: If to HPSJ, to: 
Attn: Midori Lichtwardt 
City of Tracy 

Attn: Chief Compliance Officer 
Health Plan of San Joaquin 



    

{00207385.2} HPSJ / City of Tracy 
Effective 09/14/2023 

CONFIDENTIAL Page 6 of 10 

                                     
 

333 Civic Center Plaza 
Tracy, CA. 95376  
email: Midori.lichtwardt@cityoftracy.org 

7751 South Manthey Road 
French Camp, CA 95231-9802 
email: PrivacyOfficer@hpsj.com 

 
 
14) SOLE MOU 

This document, including all attachments hereto, contains the entire MOU between the 
parties relating to the services, rights, obligations and covenants contained herein and 
assumed by the parties respectively.  No inducements, representations or promises have 
been made, other than those recited in this MOU.  No oral promise, modification, change or 
inducement shall be effective or given any force or effect. 
 

15) MODIFICATIONS OF MOU 
This MOU may be modified in writing only, signed by the parties in interest at the time of 
the modification. 
 

16)  CONFIDENTIALITY 
a. The HPSJ and City collaboration in support of project(s) may require the exchange of 

confidential or proprietary information (“Confidential Information”) as may be 
identified by either party. HPSJ and City agree to abide by processes and 
requirements applicable to the exchange of either’s respective confidential 
information, in accordance with applicable state or federal law, including but not 
limited to the California Public Records Act. City shall adhere to all HIPAA 
regulations outlined in HIPAA Business Associate Agreement.  

b. The parties shall comply and require its officers, employees, agents, and/or 
subcontractors to comply with the provisions of Welfare and Institutions Code 
Section 10850 which requires the confidentiality of applications and records 
concerning individuals receiving public social services to ensure that: 

i. The applications and records of all individuals made or kept by a public officer or 
agency in connection with the administration of the provisions of the Welfare and 
Institutions Code relating to any form of public social services for which grants in 
aid are received by the State or Federal government will be confidential and will 
not be open to examination for any purpose not directly connected with the 
administration of public social services or as required by law; and  

ii. No person will publish or disclose, or use or permit, or cause to be published, 
disclosed, or used, any confidential information pertaining to an applicant or 
recipient of public social services. 



    

{00207385.2} HPSJ / City of Tracy 
Effective 09/14/2023 

CONFIDENTIAL Page 7 of 10 

                                     
 

iii. The parties shall inform all officers, employees, agents and/or subcontractors of 
the above requirements and that any person knowingly and intentionally violating 
the provisions of State law is guilty of a misdemeanor. 

 
17)  GOVERNING LAW 

Both parties shall observe and comply with all applicable County, State and Federal laws, 
ordinances, rules and regulations now in effect or hereafter enacted, each of which are 
hereby made a part hereof and incorporated herein by reference.  The parties further agree 
this MOU shall be governed by California law. 
 

18)  NONDISCRIMINATION 
Both Parties shall observe and comply with all applicable county, state and federal laws, 
ordinances, rules, and regulations now in effect or hereafter enacted, each of which are 
hereby made a part hereof and incorporated herein by reference.  These laws include, 
without limitation, those pertaining to nondiscrimination and confidentiality of personal 
health information.   
 
 

19) CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 
Both parties shall observe and comply with all Government Code sections and the 
following: 

a. The parties have read and are aware of the provisions of Sections 1090 et seq. and 
87100 et seq. of the Government Code relating to conflict of interest of public 
officers and employees and agree to be bound thereby. The parties certify that they 
are unaware of any financial or economic interest of any public officer or employee 
relating to this MOU. It is further understood and agreed that if such a financial 
interest does exist at the inception of this MOU, the parties may immediately 
terminate this MOU by giving written notice thereof. 

b. The parties certify that its employees and officers of its governing body shall avoid 
any actual or potential conflicts of interest and that no officer or employee who 
exercises any functions or responsibilities in connection with this MOU shall have 
any personal financial interest or benefits which either directly or indirectly arises 
from this MOU. 

c. The parties shall establish safeguards to prohibit its employees or its officers from 
using their positions for a purpose that could result in private gain or that gives the 
appearance of being motivated for private gain for themselves or others, particularly 
those with whom they have family or business ties.  
 



    

{00207385.2} HPSJ / City of Tracy 
Effective 09/14/2023 

CONFIDENTIAL Page 8 of 10 

                                     
 

20) SIGNATURE AUTHORITY 
Each party represents that they have full power and authority to enter into and perform this 
MOU, and the person signing this MOU on behalf of each party has been properly 
authorized and empowered to enter into this MOU. 

 
 

[Signatures to Follow] 
  



    

{00207385.2} HPSJ / City of Tracy 
Effective 09/14/2023 

CONFIDENTIAL Page 9 of 10 

                                     
 

 
IN WITNESS TO WHICH, each party to this MOU has signed this MOU upon the date 
indicated, and agrees, for itself, its employees, officers, partners and successors, to be fully 
bound by all terms and conditions of this MOU. 
 
 

San Joaquin County Health Commission, 
dba Health Plan of San Joaquin 

 City of Tracy 

By:  
Name:  
Title:  
Date: Click or tap to enter a date.  

 By:  
Name:  
Title:  
Date:  

 
 

[reminder of this page left blank intentionally] 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



    

{00207385.2} HPSJ / City of Tracy 
Effective 09/14/2023 

CONFIDENTIAL Page 10 of 10 

                                     
 

 
EXHIBIT A 

 

Business Partner 
(Legal Name) 

City of Tracy 

Business Partner 
Tax Identification 
Number: 

94-6000442 

Copy of W-9 (Y/N) Y 

Project Name & 
Description:  

Arbor Avenue Shelter Site 
Interim Shelter site to include 5 modular buildings, 4 of which are 
dormitory in nature with one administrative building which will 
house operations and support services. 
 

Project 
Timeline/Milestones  

August – September 2022: Groundwork to prepare for Arbor 
Avenue site. (Completed) 
September 2022: Solicitation of provider/operator for Arbor Avenue 
site. (Completed) 
October 2022 – November 2022: Additional work to resolve 
additional fuel costs, fencing, lighting, gravel and operators.  
November 4, 2022: Opening of Temporary Emergency Housing 
Facility (Completed) 
Quarter 4 2023: Continuation of construction work for permanent 
site  
Quarter 4 2023: Anticipate final installation of custom containers 
and construction efforts for Phase IV 
 

Proposed Funding:  $595,000 

Distribution of 
Proposed Funding:  

Q42023: $595,000 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY 
 
 

________________________ 
CITY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE 

 
TRACY CITY COUNCIL 

 
RESOLUTION NO. _______________  

 
 
 

Adopt a Resolution: 1) Authorizing the acceptance of a grant award 
from Health Plan of San Joaquin in the amount of $595,000 to partially 
fund the continued operation of the Tracy Interim Shelter Site; and 2) 
Appropriating the total grant funds to the Mobility and Housing 
Department, Homeless Services Division budget. 
 
WHEREAS, on May 16, 2023, the City of Tracy Homeless Services Manager met with the 

Health Plan of San Joaquin and discussed the housing needs of the unsheltered throughout the 
City, and the Health Plan of San Joaquin requested a proposal for the Tracy Interim Shelter Site; 
and  
 

WHEREAS, on May 16, 2023, the City of Tracy submitted a proposal and budget to the 
Health Plan of San Joaquin in the amount of $595,000; and  

 
WHEREAS, on June 1, 2023, Health Plan of San Joaquin notified the City of Tracy that 

the proposal submitted was selected for grant funding; and  
 
  WHEREAS, the Tracy Interim Shelter Site (renamed Phase III and Phase IV of the 

Temporary Emergency Housing Facility) project is part of the overall shelter campus project, parts 
of which are in various phases of design, development, and/or construction; and  

 
 WHEREAS, the grant funding will be used to cover operating costs associated with 

monthly fuel and generator costs and temporary restrooms and fencing of Phase III and IV of the 
Temporary Emergency Housing Facility that will ultimately house up to 38 additional individuals, 
and the project is intended to provide a site for those seeking shelter within the City limits; and   

 
  WHEREAS, the City of Tracy will collaborate with the Health Plan of San Joaquin to 

provide additional resources and support to the City's unsheltered population as they are housed; 
and    

WHEREAS, City match is not required;  
 
WHEREAS, The Tracy Homelessness Advisory Committee heard this item on October 

19, 2023 and recommended that the City Council adopt the proposed Resolution; now, therefore, 
be it 

 
RESOLVED:  That the City Council hereby accepts the grant award from Health Plan of 

San Joaquin in the amount of $595,000 to partially fund operation costs of the Tracy Interim 
Shelter Site (renamed Phase III and Phase IV of the Temporary Emergency Housing Facility, CIP 
71112); and be it   

 
FURTHER RESOLVED:  That the City Council hereby appropriates $595,000 of the total 

grant funds to the Mobility and Housing Department, Homeless Services Division. 



2 

 
* * * * * * * * * * * * * * 

 
The foregoing Resolution 2023-_____ was adopted by the City Council on November 7, 2023, 
by the following vote: 
 
AYES: COUNCIL MEMBERS: 
NOES: COUNCIL MEMBERS: 
ABSENT:  COUNCIL MEMBERS: 
ABSTENTION:  COUNCIL MEMBERS: 
 

   
__________________________________________N
NANCY D. YOUNG 

                                                                 Mayor of the City of Tracy, California 
 
 

ATTEST:      
ADRIANNE RICHARDSON 
City Clerk and Clerk of the Council of the  
City of Tracy, California 



       October 19, 2023 
 

Agenda Item 3.C  
 

 
RECOMMENDATION  
 
Staff recommends that the Tracy Homelessness Advisory Committee recommend that 
the City Council adopt a Resolution (1) approving Amendment No. 1 to the General 
Services Agreement (Agreement) with United Fence Services, Inc., to extend the term of 
the Agreement through December 31, 2024 for the rental of fence panels, stands and 
safety brackets required at the Temporary Emergency Housing Facility (TEHF). 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY   
 

Staff recommends that the Tracy Homelessness Advisory Committee recommend that the City 
Council adopt a Resolution (1) approving Amendment No. 1 to the General Services Agreement 
(Agreement) with United Fence Services, Inc., to modify Section 2.1 to extend the term of the 
Agreement through December 31, 2024 for the rental of fence panels, stands and safety 
brackets required at the Temporary Emergency Housing Facility (TEHF). 
 
The proposed Amendment No. 1 (Attachment A) will extend the term of the General Services 
Agreement (GSA) with United Fence Services, Inc. (Consultant) through December 31, 2024 to 
provide the Temporary Emergency Housing Facility (TEHF) with rental of fence panels, stands 
and safety brackets. The Agreement not to exceed amount of $200,000, is unchanged.  
 
BACKGROUND AND LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 
 
On July 5, 2023, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 2023-138 approving an Agreement 
with United Fence Services, Inc., to provide rental fence panels, stands & safety brackets at the 
Temporary Emergency Housing Facility on Arbor Avenue.  
 
Under Section 2.1 of the Agreement, the term of the Agreement ends on December 21, 2023. 
Amendment No. 1 extends the term of the Agreement to December 31, 2024.   
 
ANALYSIS 
 
The City plans desires to extend the rental fencing around the Temporary Housing Emergency 
Facility to better secure the construction areas and enhance security of the residents and staff 
at the shelter until the permanent fence are installed as part of the Phase II construction. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Amendment No. 1 to the Agreement with United Fence Services, Inc. requires no additional 
funding. The Agreement is funded as part of the project Operations costs, funded by City of 
Tracy American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) funds. The Amendment does not have any fiscal 
impact. The Agreement of the not-to-exceed amount of $200,000 is unchanged. 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
Agenda Item 3.C 
October 19, 2023 
Page 2 
 
 
 

 
 

CEQA DETERMINATION 
 
A Notice of Exemption was issued on October 16, 2020, for the Temporary Emergency 
Housing site at 500 Arbor Avenue in accordance with Government Code sections 65660-
65662 for Low Barrier navigation Centers and Section 15269c) of the CEQA Guidelines (14 
Cal. Code Regs. 15269(c) for (Emergency Projects). No environmental impacts beyond those 
already analyzed for the CIP exist; accordingly, no further CEQA analysis is needed. 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN 
 

This agenda item supports the Public Safety Strategic Priority, Implement the adopted 
Homelessness Strategic Plan. 
 
ACTION REQUESTED OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
 

Staff recommends that the Tracy Homelessness Advisory Committee recommend that the City 
Council adopt a Resolution (1) approving Amendment No. 1 to the General Services Agreement 
(Agreement) with United Fence Services, Inc., to extend the term of the Agreement through 
December 31, 2024 for the rental of fence panels, stands and safety brackets required at the 
Temporary Emergency Housing Facility (TEHF). 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Attachment A – Amendment No. 1 United Fence Services, Inc. 
Attachment B – GSA United Fence Services, Inc. 
 
Prepared by: Ilene Macintire, Senior Civil Engineer  
 
Reviewed by: Sara Cowell, Director of Finance 
            Bijal Patel, City Attorney 
                       Brian MacDonald, Interim Assistant City Manager 
 
Approved by: Midori Lichtwardt, Interim City Manager  







DocuSign Envelope ID: 79690462-A9A3-45BD-B916-5F14E10E9B53 

City of Tracy- General Services Agreement with United Fence Services, Inc. 

CITY OF TRACY 
GENERAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH 

United Fence Services, Inc. - Temporary Emergency Housing Facility Fence Rentals

This General Services Agreement (Agreement) is entered into between the City of Tracy, a 
municipal corporation (City), and United Fence Services, Inc., a California corporation (Contractor).
City and Contractor are referred to individually as "Party" and collectively as "Parties." 

Recitals 

A. City desires to retain Contractor to provide the Temporary Emergency Housing Facility (TEHF)
with the rental of fence panels, stands and safety brackets; and

B. After negotiations between the City and Contractor, the Parties have reached an agreement for
the performance of services in accordance with the terms set forth in this Agreement.

C. Pursuant to Resolution No.�-1��. the City Council dispensed the procurement requirements
for this Agreement under Tracy Municipal Code section 2.20.180, subsection (b)(4), and
authorized execution of this Agreement.

D. This Agreement is being executed pursuant to Resolution No. 21)2-1:3�

Now therefore, the Parties mutually agree as follows: 

1. Scope of Work. Contractor shall perform the services described in Exhibit "A" attached and
incorporated by reference. The services shall be performed by, or under the direct supervision of,
Contractor's Authorized Representative: United Fence Services, Inc. Contractor shall not replace its
Authorized Representative, nor shall Contractor use or replace any subcontractors or subconsultants,
without City's prior written consent. A failure to obtain the City's prior written consent for any change or
replacement in personnel or subcontractor may result in the termination of this Agreement.

2. Time of Performance. Time is of the essence in the performance of services under this
Agreement and the timing requirements set forth shall be strictly adhered to unless otherwise modified
in writing in accordance with this Agreement. Any services for which times for performance are not
specified in this Agreement shall be started and completed by Contractor in a reasonably prompt and
timely manner based upon the circumstances and direction communicated to the Contractor.
Contractor shall submit all requests for time extensions to the City in writing no later than ten days after
the start of the condition which purportedly caused the delay, and not later than the date on which
performance is due. City shall grant or deny such requests at its sole discretion.

2.1 Term. The term of this Agreement shall begin on November 1, 2022 and end on December 
31, 2023, unless terminated in accordance with Section 6. 

3. Compensation. City shall pay Contractor at the billing rates set forth in Exhibit "B" attached and
incorporated by reference for services performed under this Agreement.

3.1 Not to Exceed Amount. Contractor's total compensation under this Agreement shall not 
exceed $200,000. Contractor's billing rates shall cover all costs and expenses for Contractor's 
performance of this Agreement. No work shall be performed by Contractor in excess of the total 
compensation amount provided in this section without the City's prior written approval. 

Page 1 of 9 Rev. December 2019 

Attachment B



















APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY 
 
 

________________________ 
CITY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE 

 
TRACY CITY COUNCIL 

 
RESOLUTION NO. _______________  

 
 
 

ADOPTING A RESOLUTION (1) APPROVING AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO 
THE GENERAL SERVICES AGREEMENT (AGREEMENT) WITH 
UNITED FENCE SERVICES, INC., TO EXTEND THE TERM OF THE 
AGREEMENT THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2024 FOR THE RENTAL OF 
FENCE PANELS, STANDS AND SAFETY BRACKETS REQUIRED AT 
THE TEMPORARY EMERGENCY HOUSING FACILITY (TEHF) 
 
 
WHEREAS, on July 5, 2023 the City Council adopted Resolution No. 2023-138 

dispensing the procurement requirements for this Agreement under Tracy Municipal Code 
section 2.20.180, subsection (b)(4) and authorized execution of this Agreement; and  
 

WHEREAS, the City entered into a General Services Agreement (GSA) with United Fence 
Services, Inc. (Consultant), to provide rental fence panels, stands & safety brackets at the 
Temporary Emergency Housing Facility on Arbor Avenue; and  

 
WHEREAS, Consultant has satisfactorily met all terms of the GSA; and  
 

   WHEREAS, the City plans desires to extend the rental fencing around the Temporary 
Housing Emergency Facility to better secure the construction areas and enhance security of the 
residents and staff at the shelter until the permanent fence are installed as part of the Phase II 
construction; and  

 
WHEREAS, Staff requests the extension of the term of the GSA through December 31, 

2024; and   
 

WHEREAS, the Tracy Homelessness Advisory Committee heard this item on October 19, 
2023 and recommended that the City Council adopt the proposed Resolution; now, therefore, be 
it 

 
RESOLVED: That the City Council hereby adopts a resolution approving Amendment 

No.1 to the General Services Agreement with United Fence Services, Inc. for the rental of fence 
panels, stands and safety brackets required at the Temporary Emergency Housing Facility 
(TEHF) to extend the agreement through December 31, 2024 and the Agreement not to exceed 
amount of $200,000, is unchanged; and be it   

 
 
 

* * * * * * * * * * * * * * 
 
 
 



2 

The foregoing Resolution 2023-_____ was adopted by the City Council on November 7, 2023, 
by the following vote: 
 
AYES: COUNCIL MEMBERS: 
NOES: COUNCIL MEMBERS: 
ABSENT:  COUNCIL MEMBERS: 
ABSTENTION:  COUNCIL MEMBERS: 
 

   
__________________________________________N
NANCY D. YOUNG 

                                                                 Mayor of the City of Tracy, California 
 
 

ATTEST:      
ADRIANNE RICHARDSON 
City Clerk and Clerk of the Council of the  
City of Tracy, California 


	THAC Agenda Cover 10.19.23.pdf
	1.A
	THAC 3.A
	THAC 3.B.pdf
	THAC 3.C.pdf



